
5617765v2 

 
COUNCIL CORRESPONDENCE UPDATE TO APRIL 12, 2023 (8:30 a.m.) 

 
Correspondence 
(1) 8 submissions, April 3-11, 2023, regarding Proposed Arts & Culture Facility 
(2) G. Kravac, April 5, 2023, regarding “Traffic on Taylor Way       =+” 
(3) April 5, 2023, regarding Responses to Correspondence regarding Roads and 

Intersections 
(4) 2 submissions, April 5, 2023, regarding Proposed Sports Facilities at  

Hugo Ray Park 
(5) 2 submissions, April 6, 2023, regarding Adhering to Campaign Assurances 
(6) 4 submissions, April 6-10, 2023, regarding Preliminary Development Proposal 

for Daffodil Drive 
(7) West Vancouver Chamber of Commerce, April 6, 2023 regarding News and 

Upcoming Events 
(8) April 7, 2023, regarding “CrossFit-type gym at Ambleside Park” 
(9) April 9, 2023, regarding “Pay Parking” 
(10) April 12, 2023, regarding “Fwd: Ambleside Local Area Plan” 
Correspondence from Other Governments and Government Agencies 
(11) The District of North Vancouver, April 11, 2023, regarding “FW: North Shore 

Advisory Committee on Disability Issues (ACDI) - Accessible Public 
Bathrooms at Phibbs Exchange” 

Responses to Correspondence 
(12) Engineering & Transportation Services, April 10, 2023, response to Strata 

Council LMS532 regarding “Sinking Sidewalk Southside of 1400 block  
Marine Drive” 
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From:
Sent: Wednesday, April 5, 2023 9:23 PM
To: correspondence
Cc:
Subject: New Arts Facility, April 24 Council Meeting Agenda Item

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization from email address . Do not 
click links or open attachments unless you validate the sender and know the content is safe. If you believe this e-mail is 
suspicious, please report it to IT by marking it as SPAM. 

Dear Members of District Council 
I write you to express my overwhelming support for building a new stand-alone arts facility in West Vancouver. A 
community as robust as ours, deserves not only access to nature, and sporting facilities (both of which we have in good 
measure), but also cultural amenities that are just as essential to the health of a community.  

Art is what binds people together. Art allows us to express and reflect who we are as a society. An art gallery brings 
different perspectives together, it creates joy, it makes us proud: it is akin to a hospital for the soul. Please support all of 
those adults and children who believe in the importance of creativity in our lives by voting to accept the thorough and 
thoughtful report to proceed with building a new arts facility. After decades of discussion, this has become an urgent 
matter and must not be delayed any further. 

Thank you for the important work that you do. 
Sincerely 

West Vancouver BC 

s. 22(1)

s. 22(1)

s. 22(1)

s. 22(1)

s. 22(1)















Thank you for your email. We will add this information to the existing enquiry  and forward it to the 
Roads Department for processing. We appreciate the seriousness of your concerns. There are currently  

24 traffic calming requests in the system. Your request is now being tracked and will be considered in the 
order that it was received and level of priority. It is not possible to provide a timeline at this time, we will reach 
out with any further questions. 

Please be aware that further enquiries will not expedite any action regarding your request. We will contact you 
with any update. 

Thank you for your patience. 

Engineering & Transportation Services | District of West Vancouver 

engineeringdept@westvancouver.ca | 604-925-7020 

Tue, 8 Nov 2022, 09:32 

to Engineering, rbartlett 

I am following up on my report ) to the District made in July 2022, to which I have yet to receive any 
substantive reply, reporting a very dangerous junction at Inglewood and 11th (travelling East along Inglewood 
attempting to cross 11th in a vehicle) due to cars parked on the unmade “sidewalk” north and south of the intersection 
impeding the driver’s view of oncoming traffic. 

Please note that this is not a request for “traffic calming”.  This is a report of a dangerous junction due to parked cars on 
the sidewalk restricting visibility and a query whether the cars are parked illegally (in which case as a danger to life and 
limb they should be ticketed and removed), or whether the cars are parked legally (in which case I recommend that a 
“no parking” restriction be instituted as parked cars in that location cause danger and request the District’s opinion on 
what if anything is to be done). 

Please may I have a reply?* 
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From:
Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 12:03 PM
To: correspondence
Subject: Aquila Development Concerns
Attachments: Points of Concern EH Daffodil.docx

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization from email address Do not click
links or open attachments unless you validate the sender and know the content is safe. If you believe this e mail is
suspicious, please report it to IT by marking it as SPAM.

I would like to share in the attached document my deep concerns about the Aquila Development proposed in Eagle
Harbour.

This is not appropriate development for our community.

Thank you,

s. 22(1)
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We are very concerned that the current proposal (Aquila) does not properly fit the Eagle
Harbour neighbourhood for many reasons which are outlined below.

You proposal to add 36 homes to the neighbourhood, which is a significant increase in
the rezoning from the existing zoning of 10 single family homes.

We will review some of the points that have previously been mentioned to you, staff and
Councilors during public meetings, letters and zoom calls. It appears for the most part
these concerns have largely been ignored.

1. OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN

Despite what you have written in submitted material, this spot zoning

Aquila does NOT align with the Official Community Plan (OCP).

Sterling Developments purchased a property that was approved for 10 single family homes
and this property should not be further rezoned.

When the last rezoning was done, West Vancouver had not declared a Climate Emergency.

During the new existing conditions, this zoning is questionable to start with. To remove
a massive number of trees, blast and excavate a hillside forested area of 4.5 acres will certainly
create environmental hazards such a landslide risk, flooding (note rainfall intensity has
increased drastically since the rezoning was made), and risk of ground movement. The loss of
significant amount of mature tree cover will only worsen the heat dome effect that we can
expect to experience in the coming summer periods for the next many years.

Rezoning this site goes against the existing rules of the OCP:

OCP 2.1.4:
a. Considering proposals for sites adjacent to and across the road from neighbourhood hubs

such as schools, places of worship, parks, recreational facilities, local commercial nodes
and existing multifamily uses.

b. Reviewing designs in relation to site characteristics (e.g., site area, configuration,
access) and compatibility with neighbourhood context and character and

considering a range of housing types...to max of three stories.

The site in question does not fulfill criteria a:



 There is only one small elementary school (Eagle Harbour Montessori) nearby – currently at
maximum enrollment

 To get to Rockridge – you drive, few kids are seen walking in the pouring rain up the hill for
a 30 minute walk or more to school

 Limited services are found a Caulfield Mall – but more are found in Dundarave and
Ambleside – for any services you must drive up Westport. Nobody is walking up Westport
to haul back their groceries for a family of four!

 There is a park nearby and a beach, but there is no commercial node nor
existing multifamily dwellings

 As to access for public transportation, there is a bus that only runs east to west and reverse
every 30 minutes, otherwise you need a car.

 You mention that a trail through the property would ease access to Whyte Lake Trail. There
is a parking lot on top of Westport Road and otherwise people walk up Seaview Walk and
gain access through the old highway to the trail.

 There is a park nearby and a beach, but there is no commercial node nor
existing multifamily dwellings

Point b.

 The site configuration is steep with a height difference from around 20 meters to 65 meters.
 However, what concerns us more is the “compatibility with neighbourhood context and

character”. Eagle Harbour is a single house family friendly quiet community without
services nearby. Many houses in the area are ranchers and maximum 2 storey houses. So
how can there be compatibility with neighbourhood context and character?

And for point OCP 2.1.7 c. “minimal impact to access, traffic, parking, and public views in
the neighbourhood”.

 As has been mentioned before, your traffic study is inadequate and false as to number of
expected cars. More of this below.

 You allow for 10 visitor parking spots and 2 car garages. If you consider the number of
cars that the rest of the neighbourhood has per family, two cars are a minimum. Many
families have teen aged children (which we assume would be part of your expected so
called “missing middle” definition) and you can find both 3 and 4 cars/family. Therefore,
parking would quickly fill up and overflow onto Daffodil or further.

 With three “garbage/recycling trucks per week”, a massive amount of delivery trucks and
various service vehicles, your road in and out of the property would quickly become a
traffic hazard.

 Even though your proposal does not include secondary suites, there is nothing that would
prohibit owners to redesign to allow for a nanny suite, caretaker suite or a rental suite,
which would obviously increase the number of entering and exiting the area.



 Furthermore, the proposal does not follow the framework set in the report from
Neighbourhood Character Working group which was accepted by the District of
West Vancouver end of 2020.

Quote:
“Neighbourhood character is defined in the West Vancouver Official Community Plan (OCP)
as: “Sense of place and its distinct aspects that cause a specific area to be familiar to the
people associated with it and recognizable from other areas.”

Other definitions include:
• The look and feel of an area.
• Qualities that make one neighbourhood distinct from another;
• A range of physical components including: the built environment, architectural style,
street width and layout, vegetation, fence height and style, and so on.”

In addition to these issues of not aligning with the District’s own OCP and framework for what
new developments in single family areas should look like, there are many other issues raised
by concerned residents.

Other key issues:
o TRAFFIC
o SAFETY
o INFRASTRUCTURE

SCHOOLS
TRANSIT
ROADS/PARKING
WATER/SEWAGE ETC

o ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
o NOISE – both during construction and after



2. TRAFFIC AND SAFETY

As discussed, two years ago, traffic is an important subject and involves other issues
such as safety and parking. The report you have submitted makes certain
recommendation as to sightlines and stop signs on Daffodil. It does not address the
roadway of Daffodil Drive and Marine Drive.

Furthermore, your traffic measurement is flawed.

We conducted a recent traffic study during one week recently where we
counted number of cars going up and down Cranley Drive by Nelson Creek using
electronic instruments. There are about 25 houses with cars on Bluebell and another
20 houses with cars on Cranley Drive north of Nelson Creek. This makes 45 houses.
Assuming that 40% (it could be 50% or 30%) of the cars drive up and down Primrose
and therefore do not go via Cranley.

This makes about 27 houses with cars driving up and down Cranley Drive. Our count
during a week in March (including a weekend) was an average of 45 cars between 7
AM to 12 noon and between 12 noon to 9pm 113 cars (both ways). This was fairly
regular, and our conclusion is that there are no peak hours as mentioned in your
report.

These 158 trips from 27 houses would be representative of traffic in your proposed
development. These are not average North American standard number of cars that
the Howes Technical report referred to, but real numbers.

With your proposed number of houses being 24 by the Daffodil Drive exit,
the normalized value would be 140 trips, rather than 66 that you mention in your
report. I.E DOUBLE THE AMOUNT OF TRAFFIC.

This increased number of cars was extensively discussed with you two years ago,
and you have completely ignored these numbers.

This increased traffic brings with it important issues as to safety:

1. Traffic heading from east to west on Marine Drive approaching Daffodil Drive are exiting
a curve – there is a very big blind spot prior to the corner of Daffodil – cars exiting
Daffodil and wanting to turn LEFT (east) have limited site of oncoming traffic from the
east – many would likely prefer to drive along Daffodil Drive to Cranley and then head to
Marine Dr. from Cranley as the access and site lines are better – less risk – this will
INCREASE traffic on lower Cranley Drive.



2. Although Marine Drive in this area is a 30 km zone, a vast majority (including the bus)
speed up on this stretch. The District’s Traffic department has stated that they have
no intention for any traffic calming actions.

3. During the spring, summer and fall, Marine Drive fills with cyclists and
motorcycles. This increased traffic makes it a higher risk for accidents.

4. Eagle Harbour beach has become a very popular destination to launch SUPs, kayaks
etc. and the traffic to this beach along the same stretch of Marine Drive has increased
over the last few years.

5. Ferry traffic, tourists and visitors increase in the summer.

Further to these issues, we are very concerned about the safety – during construction and
after.

Our children’s SAFETY – Will Sterling Development, DWV Councilors and staff take
responsibility when a child, cyclist, pedestrian is hurt because of the increased traffic and
dangerous crossings required because of this development? Children who are walked to
daycare or elementary school are extra vulnerable when crossing Marine Drive to the
South side’s sidewalk.

There are No sidewalks on Daffodil Drive, Cranley Drive, the north side of Marine
Drive between Eagle Harbour School and Cranley Drive and further to Primrose. Most
neighbours want to preserve Daffodil and Cranley Drive as it has been with a feel of a country
lane. These are roads where people stroll, meet to chat, bike and where cars are gently
passing the pedestrians.

Our kids play, bike, and walk on these streets and so do lots of adults and seniors.

No crosswalk on Marine Drive at Daffodil (which is already a dangerous spot to
cross Marine Drive.)

Narrow little Daffodil Drive cannot handle parking for construction workers, large
construction trucks entering and exiting the property where there are many pedestrians,
children, and cyclists.



3. LACK OF INFRASTRUCTURE

Schools
Note that there is currently a wait list for Eagle Harbour elementary school (about a 2
½ years wait) as well as the daycare there.
Other schools – Rockridge, Gleneagles are full – there are traffic jams daily on
Headland Drive for families DRIVING to and from Rockridge School.
If density will at all be increased, thenWV School Board or the District need to make sure that
the school bus system is resumed for Rockridge, Gleneagles, and Caulfield Schools, which was
removed by Mary Ann Booth.

Childcare – Early Childhood Education/Care
 Existing families in the Eagle Harbour area already scramble for childcare and

Early ChildhoodEducation spots for their young children – increased density will only make
this issue worse.

StormWater/Sewers/Water/Land Erosion
Given the age of the current systems in place – this development will only increase the load
on an already very aged systems – who will pay for upgrades? West Vancouver taxpayers?
Perhaps the developer should pay for this with extensive grants ear marked for this area.

Will the DWV take responsibility when there is flooding and erosion down
theslopento theexisting homes on Cranley Drive or Daffodil Drive.

During the Springtime, Eagle Creek is like a river and when removing all these trees, there is
likely to be large issues. Has anybody from the District calculated the additional amount of
water that the creek can handle andwhat the resulting additional rainwater from the removal
of all the trees would be. Nelson Creek has already flooded more than once. Where are the
considerations for this environmental hazard?

4. ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

CLIMATE CHANGE – DWV has a Climate Change Mandate – should it not be
followed? Increasing the number of automobile trips with 36 families goes against this
goal!

Given recent weather events – heat dome, extreme rainfall, and flooding – it does not make
sense to clear this large piece of land of the trees and add paved roads for 36 families to drive
in and out of the property – how does this help solve climate issues?

There are already issues of erosion and flooding from the property down onto the
existing Daffodil properties – this will only increase once land is cleared.



It is noted on the DWV website that 41% of GHG are derived from on road commuting –
increased density of this development will only contribute to this issue – not help to
solve the issue–as we all must commute by car from Eagle Harbour for our
daily work/school/chores/shopping etc.

5. NOISE – BOTH DURING CONSTRUCTION AND AFTER

The noise levels of construction will be unbearable with the current Noise Bylaw –
Monday to Friday – 8 am to 5:30 pm and Saturday 8 5pm. Specific restrictions must be set
on this development that no construction is permitted on Saturday or Sunday.

“Resident Only” parking should be enacted, and signage posted on Daffodil,
Marine Drive (between Cranley and Primrose) and Cranley Drive to dissuade
construction workers or visitors to Aquila from parking in the area.

So where will all these construction workers park? And even if a parking area is secured for
them somewhere in the vicinity – we know that they will not all use this as they will prefer
to be parked close to their job site.

We know that Westport Road is very steep and curvy and has restrictions against heavy
vehicles. Therefore, we are assuming that all heavy vehicles will pass Eagle Harbour
elementary school and navigate Marine Drive and Daffodil Drive. This is definitely not only
a safety issue, but also a substantial noise issue.

As Cranley, Daffodil and much of Eagle Harbour is geographically in a bowl – how will we all
be affected by the traffic noise as cars move through the development? When
the previouowner of the would have a neighbourhood summer party – we
could hear the conversations andmusic very clearly down on – this will be even
louder once trees are removed and the sound gets amplified by the acoustics of this major
development proposal.

What kind of sound barriers will be erected, both during construction and after
construction?

6. CONCLUSION

Reading all the DWV reports, the Developer’s proposal, and staff answers to questions, we
feel that neither the Developer nor staff have particularly listened to our
legitimate concerns. In fact this new proposal has not changed much.

It is evident that Aquila does not fit into the Eagle Harbour area neighbourhood.
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To add 36 units, which means placing over 75 people in a limited area
completely surrounded by single family homes is against what this neighbourhood
should accept. It would also imply the negative effect of adding around 150 cars or more
into the neighbourhood with its added safety implications.

Current purchase price for a unit in Aquila is noted to be $1.5 to 2.3 MILLION dollars – this
will not be bringing our adult children back to the neighbourhood. They have all departed
– due to high rent or purchase price of property – they are living in Pemberton, Squamish,
North Van, Burnaby, and far beyond.

As for aging seniors, to build 3 story houses in an area lacking stores, restaurants
and services is not viable. It is mentioned that maybe elevators would be incorporated.
At what cost? This is not a project for young families nor down scaling seniors who prefer
ranchers

We propose that a Local Area Plan is developed BEFORE a developer can start an ill
conceived project that changes a neighbourhood character.

Considering all of the above, we strongly recommend that you withdraw your latest
application and accept the original approval for 10 homes – but with absolute minimum tree
loss (for reasons stated above).

Respectfully,

A Concerned Resident of Eagle Harbour
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Neetu Shokar

From: West Vancouver Chamber of Commerce <info@westvanchamber.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 4:57 PM
To: correspondence
Subject: BC Government Announces Increase to Minimum Wage

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization from email address bounce-mc.us11_44199129.6229106-
51979c12b5@mail115.atl301.rsgsv.net. Do not click links or open attachments unless you validate the sender and know the content is 
safe. If you believe this e-mail is suspicious, please report it to IT by marking it as SPAM.

Unsubscribe 
It appears that you have subscribed to commercial messages from this sender. To stop receiving such messages from 
this sender, please unsubscribe 

West Vancouver Chamber of Commerce View this email in your 
browser  

Annual Conversation with the Mayor 



On behalf of the West Vancouver Chamber of Commerce we 
would like to thank Mayor Mark Sager, Council members, 
special guests, and all who joined us for a great evening.   

Thank you to our Presenting Sponsors: 
British Pacific Properties and Park Royal / Larco Group 
and our Media Sponsor, North Shore News. 

To read more about the event, please visit North Shore News.  

Canadian Blood Services 
Donation Event 

April 27th - Congregation Har El 
1:15 pm - 8pm 

For more information, please contact 

Chris Loat at chris-loat@shaw.ca 

Click HERE to book. 

BC Government Announces Increase to Minimum Wage

On June 1, 2023, minimum wage will be increading by 6.9% from $15.65 to $16.75 
an hour. For more information, please visit gov.bc.ca. 

BC Chamber of Commerce Statement on Minimum Wage 
Increase

In response to the provincial government’s announcement to increase the 
minimum wage, the BC Chamber of Commerce, released a statement addressing 



their concerns about the impact this, and other recent decisions have on BC 
Businesses.  

"The increase comes on the heels of several government decisions in the last 14 
months that have added significantly to the cost of doing business in British 
Columbia... Today’s announcement only adds to the urgency we see for 
government to take meaningful actions that support businesses so they can create 
jobs, hire workers, contribute to community growth and drive economic 
sustainability and prosperity.” 

~ Fiona Famulak, President and CEO of the BC Chamber of Commerce 

Please visit bcchamber.org for more.  

Join now! 

Develop valuable connections that lead to business growth 
and personal success. Access Chamber benefits only 
available to members.  
Membership pays for itself… 

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that the link points to the correct file and  
location.

SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES 
Promote your business and help support the 
Chamber. Sponsor an event!
The West Vancouver Chamber of Commerce offers a 
variety of sponsorship opportunities that provide your 
business with the chance to be front and center in our 
community. Sponsors are an important part of our 
events!  For further info: SPONSORSHIP 

Facebook

Instagram

Website

LinkedIn

Copyright © 2023 West Vancouver Chamber of Commerce, All rights reserved. 
You are receiving this email because you opted in at our website. 



 
Our mailing address is: 

West Vancouver Chamber of Commerce 
2235 Marine Drive 

West Vancouver, Bc V7V 1K5  
Canada 

 
Add us to your address book 

 
 

Want to change how you receive these emails? 
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list  





Sincerely, 
 

 

 
West Vancouver, BC 
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From:
Sent: Wednesday, April 12, 2023 8:12 AM
To: correspondence
Subject: Fwd: Ambleside Local Area Plan

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization from email address Do not click
links or open attachments unless you validate the sender and know the content is safe. If you believe this e mail is
suspicious, please report it to IT by marking it as SPAM.

>> Dear Mayor and Council,
>>
>> I am writing this letter as the Ambleside Local Area Plan workshops are
going to be held and I wanted to voice my concerns. Having been in the business for over 40
years, I can understand the difficulty the planning department is facing when drafting this plan. I have reviewed the
three proposed options and all have merit as well as drawbacks. However, I would like to draw your attention to certain
parameters that should be considered. Firstly, when considering such an extensive housing development we must
ensure we have the infrastructure to support it. As it stands now, our transportation system cannot handle any further
housing added to the north shore. Either a third crossing must be built over the Burrard Inlet or the addition of rapid
transit must be added to the north shore before additional housing is built. Secondly, one must consider the views of
the existing residents who currently live in Ambleside. To block these views would be a travesty to people who
purchased property believing construction could not be higher than 40 feet or three stories in height. Thirdly, I realize
this is a long term plan but I question whether we need close to 1000 units of additional housing in Ambleside. What we
need is a well conceived plan that updates some of the old dilapidated properties in Ambleside and brings the seaside
village character to prominence.
>>
>> Thank you for taking the time to read my email and if you have any questions regarding the above I would be happy
to answer them.
>>
>> Yours truly,
>>
>>
>>
>> West Vancouver
>
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Neetu Shokar

From: Mary Jukich <jukichm@dnv.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 2:30 PM
To: correspondence
Cc: Maeve Bermingham; Alexis Chicoine
Subject: FW: North Shore Advisory Committee on Disability Issues (ACDI) - Accessible Public Bathrooms at 

Phibbs Exchange
Attachments: CDNV_DISTRICT_HALL-#5979949-v1-

Letter_to_Translink_-_Accessible_Public_Bathrooms_at_Phibbs_Exchange.PDF

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization from email address jukichm@dnv.org. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you validate the sender and know the content is safe. If you believe this e-mail is suspicious, please report it to 
IT by marking it as SPAM.

At the March 30, 2023 mee ng of the North Shore Advisory Commi ee on Disability Issues (ACDI), the
commi ee approved the a ached le er on accessible public bathrooms at Phibbs Exchange and requested
that the le er be forwarded to Mayor and Council.

Thanks

Mary Jukich
Committee Clerk
The District of North Vancouver
355 West Queens, North Vancouver BC V7N 4N5



 

 

 

NORTH SHORE ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON DISABILITY ISSUES 
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March 30, 2023 

 
Mr. Kevin Quinn, CEO, Translink 
kevin.quinn@translink.ca 
 
Re: Accessible Public Bathrooms at Phibbs Exchange 
 
Accessible, clean, and safe public bathrooms are a necessity in any urban center as large 
and diverse as Metro Vancouver. Like housing, public bathrooms are a basic need, a 
human right, a public health concern, and a necessary piece of urban infrastructure.  
 
The North Shore Advisory Committee on Disability Issues (ACDI) is writing to support the 
District of North Vancouver’s request for the inclusion of accessible public bathrooms in 
the Phibbs Exchange Upgrade Project. 
 
The public realm and its amenities are essential to the health and livability of a city. Public 
amenities are resources, facilities, or benefits continuously offered to the public for their 
use and/or enjoyment. Common examples include playgrounds, street furniture, water 
fountains, and community centers. Considerations of public amenities focus 
predominantly on these recreational or aesthetic amenities. Bathrooms—our most basic 
need—are often forgotten or cut from a project, due to cost constraints. 
 

As noted on the Translink website, “Phibbs Exchange is one of the 
most important bus exchanges in the region, serving 13 bus routes 
with nearly 14,000 boardings and alightings daily. Because of its 
position in the regional road network, the exchange is where many 
routes on the North Shore meet in a carefully managed pulse, 
allowing efficient transfers in all directions.”1 

 
As of June 2021, the Accessible British Columbia Act (the “Act”)2 is law in British Columbia 
(BC). The Act’s intent is to make the province more inclusive, including for persons with 
disabilities. One of the key features required by all Public Sector Organizations, which 
includes Translink, notes that, “An organization must develop a plan to identify, remove 
and prevent barriers to individuals in or interacting with the organization.”3 The 14,000 
people, many of which are people with disabilities, do not have access to any bathroom 
close by, even private ones, due to the isolated location of the transit hub.  Not being able 
to access a bathroom, during one’s travels, creates a barrier to access.  
 
Public washrooms were the top request when TransLink held an online consultation with 
the general public asking for their wish list of new and improved passenger amenities and 
services in May 2021.4 It was clear that the existing public bathroom infrastructure at 
transit hubs was not meeting the public’s needs. No new bathrooms have opened since 
this feedback. 



NORTH SHORE ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON DISABILITY ISSUES 

District of North Vancouver, 355 West Queens, North Vancouver BC V7N 4N5 - www.dnv.org   

Page 2 of 2 

This environment of inequitable access highlights how historical discriminatory policies 
and practices still remain today. Recognizing and addressing these deficiencies by 
focusing on increasing diversity, equity and inclusion concepts, including universal 
design, opens the door to optimize transit usage.   

The Mayors’ Council approved TransLink’s 2022 investment plan in May 2022, which 
outlined the public transit authority’s strategy over the next three years.5 The ACDI 
appreciates that the plan involves the inclusion of new public washrooms at six major 
transit hubs starting in 2024, though the locations have not been announced. 

The ACDI committee members call on Translink to work with the council and staff of the 
District of North Vancouver to develop a plan and complete the building of an accessible 
public bathroom at Phibbs Exchange to have it open and operating within the timeline of 
the present upgrade project.  Accessible public bathrooms are a need, not an option. 

Respectfully, 

Alexis Chicoine 
Committee Chair 
North Shore Advisory Committee on Disability Issues 

CC:   Rob Fleming, Minister of Transportation and Infrastructure 
Minister.Transportation@gov.bc.ca 

Brad West, Chair of Translink Mayors’ Council 
westb@portcoquitlam.ca 

Lorraine Cunningham, Chair of Translink Board of Directors 
Board@translink.ca 

Mayor and Council, District of North Vancouver 
Mayor and Council, City of North Vancouver 
Mayor and Council, District of West Vancouver 
Nick Giannone, Staff Liaison, District of North Vancouver 
Christel Lindgren, Staff Liaison, City of North Vancouver 
Maeve Bermingham, Staff Liaison, District of West Vancouver 

Resources: 
1. https://www.translink.ca/plans-and-projects/projects/maintenance-and-upgrade-

program/bus-projects
2. https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/21019
3. https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/21019#part3
4. https://engagetranslink.ca/your-ideas/brainstormers/share-your-ideas-for-improving-

transit/
5. https://www.translink.ca/-/media/translink/documents/plans-and-projects/ten-

year-investment-plan/vision/2022_investment_plan.pdf
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From: Engineering Department
Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 2:47 PM
To: correspondence
Cc: Engineering Department
Subject: District of West Vancouver Call #:  M-107484 - 1400 Block Marine Drive Sidewalk

Hello Susan, 

Thank you for your email. The repair to minimize the uneven sidewalk at the corner of 14th & Marine Drive is 
currently out to tender. The sidewalk disrepair is due to ground settling under the sidewalk and the road.  

In conjunction with the sidewalk repair Engineering will also be conducting an investigation to understand why 
Marine Drive continues to settle and to identify ways to the stop the settlement. In 2024 we are hoping to 
repave Marine Drive between 14th and 16th Street and implement the recommendations from the 
investigation.   

Sincerely, 

Engineering & Transportation Services | District of West Vancouver 
engineeringdept@westvancouver.ca | 604-925-7020 
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Many thanks for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Susan Minchin
Strata Council President LMS532
On behalf of the residential owners and commercial owner
1402, 1406, 1408 and 1412 Marine Drive
West Vancouver, B.C.




